
Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

Brett Sanders 
V. Chairman, District Four

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

Glenn Davis 
District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

Jimmy Davis 
District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson
District Seven 

Renee Watts
Clerk to Council 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

AGENDA  
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Special Presentation Meeting 
Tuesday, February 15, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

Anderson County Civic Center 
3027 Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard 

 Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATION:

a. R2022-008- A Resolution to honor and recognize Estella Williams for her lifetime of extraordinary service to 
the Anderson Community; and other matters related thereto.

Hon. Glenn Davis 
b. R2022-009- A Resolution to honor and recognize Gerald Bernard Black for his many decades of service to the
Anderson Community and beyond; and other matters related thereto.

Hon. Tommy Dunn   

3. ADJOURNMENT

 AGENDA  
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, February 15, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 

Anderson County Civic Center 
3027 Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard 

 Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  Hon. Cindy Wilson 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
  January 4, 2022, January 18, 2022, January 24, 2022 

  minutes not received February 1, 2022 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, February 15, 2022 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

4. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Agenda Matters Only 
 
 
 
 
5. REPORT FROM LITTER ADHOC COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON FEBRUARY 10, 2022 
   

Mr. John Wright, Jr. (allotted 10 minutes) 
 

6. REPORT FROM PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON   
FEBRUARY 11, 2022 

 
Ms. Cindy Wilson (allotted 10 minutes) 

 
 
7. ORDINANCE THIRD READING:  
 
   a. 2022-003- An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 

park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related 
thereto. [Project Spruce]  

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

    
 

8. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  
    
   a.2022-005- An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 

park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park to include certain property of 
Lollis Metals, Inc.; and other matters related thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 
  b. 2022-006- An Ordinance to amend sections 38-172 and 38-174 of the Anderson County, South Carolina, Code   

of Ordinances so as to require Planning Commission approval for certain dwelling units; and other matters 
related thereto. 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
 c. 2021-059- An Ordinance to amend Article II and Article III of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson 

County, South Carolina related to Emergency Medical Services and franchise requirements for non-emergency 
medical services; and other matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, February 15, 2022 
 
Page 3 

 

   
 

 
 

 
 
 

9. APPOINTMENTS: 
      a. Appalachian Council of Governments-Charles E. Pinson 

Mr. Tommy Dunn 
 

 
 
10. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL:  
      a. Shalom House Ministries, Inc (Halfway House for women with addictions/charity cycling fundraiser) All         

Districts 
 
11. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:         
      a. Budget Transfers 
      b. Paving 
      c. Special Projects       
 
 
 
12. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
13. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



RESOLUTION R2022-008 

A RESOLUTION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE ESTELLA WILLIAMS FOR HER 
LIFETIME OF EXTRAORDINARY SERVICE TO THE ANDERSON COMMUNITY; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Mrs. Estella Williams, following a career cleaning Michelin Tire 
facilities that spanned three decades, began, at age 69, as a favor to her son-
in-law, what she thought would be temporary work as a crossing guard; and 

WHEREAS, more than 25 years later, Mrs. Williams, at age 94, is still working 
as a crossing guard at Westside High School, showing no signs of slowing 
down and no signs of aging, attracting national media attention and 
shining a spotlight not only on her unrivaled work ethic and spirit but also 
on the community she loves to serve; and 

WHEREAS, Mrs. Williams is the proud mother of 18 children, 55 
grandchildren, 84 great-grandchildren, 17 great-great-grandchildren 
and a mother-figure to more than 1,000 children, and has touched countless 
lives as a constant volunteer at Meals on Wheels, area hospices and many 
other organizations she has served though her church, Mt. Herman Baptist, 
inspiring all she has come to know and many she has never met; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council, in a meeting 
duly assembled this 15th day of February 2022, does hereby honor, recognize, 
and congratulate Mrs. Estella Williams for her significant contributions to 
our community and wishes her many more years serving the community she 
loves. 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY:    ATTEST: 

____________________ ____________________ 
Glenn Davis Rusty Burns 
County Council   County Administrator  
District Two 

____________________ 
Renee D. Watts 
Clerk to Council 



                                                   RESOLUTION R2022-009 
 
A RESOLUTION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE GERALD BERNARD BLACK FOR HIS 
MANY DECADES OF SERVICE TO THE ANDERSON COMMUNITY AND BEYOND; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
WHEREAS, Gerald Bernard Black began work as an agent at the South Carolina Department of 
Probation, Parole & Pardon Services on January 17, 1986 and recently retired from his distinguished 
career with 36 years of service on January 17, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Black has served in roles of great responsibility during his career, including as 
Agent I from 1986 to 1988, as Intensive Agent III from 1988 to 1994, as Team Leader from 1994 to 
2001, as Agent in Charge of Anderson County in 2001, as Agent in Charge of Abbeville County from 
2010 to 2013, as Agent in Charge of the Tenth Judicial Circuit from 2016 to 2017 and Regional 
Director—Region I, which includes Anderson County, from 2017 to 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Black has won numerous awards and other recognition for his excellent service at 
SCPPPS, including 1990 Statewide Employee of the Year, 1996 Region I Supervisor of the Year, 
2003 Statewide Supervisor of the Year, 2003 Agent in Charge Office of the Year Award, 2011 Agent 
in Charge Office of Excellence Award, and was a founding member of the New Hiring Task Force, 
an original panelist for the New Agent Panel, a member of the Clemson University Law Enforcement 
Leadership Council, a panelist for Clemson University Police Department Lieutenant through Captain 
Positions, an AIC Budget Committee Representative, Agency Strategic Plan Subcommittee Member, 
Agency Accreditation Team Member, and was featured in Corrections Today magazine’s “Best in 
the Business” feature; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council, in a meeting duly assembled 
this 15th day of February 2022, does hereby recognize Gerald Bernard Black for his dedicated service 
to the citizens of Anderson County and South Carolina and congratulates him on a well-deserved 
retirement. 

 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY  ATTEST 
 
 
____________________   ____________________ 
Tommy Dunn     Rusty Burns 
County Council Chairman   County Administrator  
District Five 
 
      ____________________ 
      Renee D. Watts 

Clerk to Council 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

JANUARY 4, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS - Via Zoom
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS
GLENN DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - January 4, 2022
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   ... Mr. Graham.
2 RAY GRAHAM:  Yes, Chairman. 
3 I bring this is the form of a resolution and motion.  
4 THIS IS RESOLUTION 2021-061.
5 THIS IS A RESOLUTION HONORING MARTY KNIGHT UPON HIS
6 PROMOTION TO 10th DEGREE BLACK BELT; AND OTHER MATTERS
7 RELATED THERETO.
8 WHEREAS, karate is a martial art emphasizing
9 striking techniques and is steeped in a tradition
10 dating back more than 500 years to the Ryukyu Kingdom
11 in East Asia; and,
12 WHEREAS, Belton native Marty Knight has been
13 awarded the 10th Degree black belt in karate by Ken
14 Vitali American Karate and the South Carolina Dan
15 Board, a distinction bestowed only on those martial
16 artists who have spent years in furtherance of the
17 martial arts and have demonstrated a lifetime of
18 significant achievement; and,
19  WHEREAS, for almost fifty years Marty has studied,
20 practiced and taught karate, having earned his black
21 belt in 1975 while training under Keith Vitali and Mike
22 Genova, and continuing on to become a world- renowned
23 competitor and instructor; and,
24  WHEREAS, over the course of his competitive martial
25 arts career, Marty has won four world championships,
26 six national championships, and seven international
27 titles; and,
28 WHEREAS, since 1978, in keeping with Marty’s belief
29 that the traits of dedication, diligence, and
30 self-discipline inherent to the martial arts are life
31 lessons that can be used both on and off the mat, Marty
32 Knight Karate has trained three generations of children
33 and adults in our area.  Marty also conducts
34 after-school programs as well as self-defense and
35 women's kickboxing clinics, all in furtherance of the
36 tradition of educating others in the techniques and
37 philosophies of the martial arts; and,
38 WHEREAS, Marty's career highlights include: being
39 voted in the top twenty black belts in the nation in
40 1985; traveling in 1989 with the Chuck Norris team to
41 Russia, where he was named the most valuable competitor
42 of the team; earning gold medals in Greece, South
43 America, Ireland, Canada, Mexico, and Jamaica; and
44 induction into the United States Hall of Fame.  Marty
45 has won every national tournament in America and has
46 never lost an international match.
47 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
48 County Council hereby congratulates Marty Knight on his
49 attainment of the 10th Degree black belt in karate,
50 and in doing so, we honor him not only for his mastery



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - January 4, 2022
3

1 of technical martial arts skills but also for his
2 life’s work of instilling the traits of honor, respect,
3 and courage in others.
4 May this be resolved in meeting duly assembled this
5 4th day of January, 2022.  
6 I bring this in the form of a motion, Mr. Chairman.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
8 by Mr. Graham; second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?
9 RAY GRAHAM:  Marty, I just
10 want to congratulate you on your life achievements in
11 karate.  Being from Belton, you know, I see what you
12 have given back to the community.  You’re just a staple
13 in the community.  You’ve always been there and have
14 always offered classes and stuff and shared your
15 knowledge and your experience.  No question, you’ve
16 truly impacted generations in our area and our county,
17 plus across the world, as far as that goes.  
18 But definitely want to congratulate you on this and
19 appreciate everything you do representing Anderson
20 County.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?
22 GLENN DAVIS:  I’d like, Mr.
23 Chairman, ---
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Davis.
25 GLENN DAVIS:  That last
26 sentence in the fifth paragraph, never lost an
27 international match.  Never lost.  That is awesome.  I
28 congratulate you.  Good job.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?
30 I’d just like to say, Mr. Knight, I don’t know you
31 personally, but heard a lot about you.  Appreciate what
32 all you’ve done for the citizens of Anderson County and
33 how you’ve led your life and lead others.  And
34 appreciate what you’ve done.  And people like you is
35 what makes Anderson County special.  Thank you very,
36 very much.
37 Hearing nothing further, we’ll call for the vote. 
38 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed. 
39 And Mr. Sanders, how do you vote?
40 BRETT SANDERS:  I vote yes.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Show the motion
42 carries unanimously.  Mr. Graham.
43 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman,
44 if we could, Mr. Knight, if you would come to the
45 front, we’d like to present you with a ...
46 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
47 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to
48 move on now to item 2(b), Resolution R2022-001.  Again,
49 Honorable Councilman Ray Graham.
50 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - January 4, 2022
4

1 Chairman.  I present this resolution and bring it to
2 full council.  
3 This is Resolution R2022-001.
4 THIS IS A RESOLUTION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE
5 STARR-IVA WATER & SEWER DISTRICT FOR BEING NAMED THE
6 2021 SOUTH CAROLINA RURAL WATER DISTRICT OF THE YEAR;
7 AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.
8 WHEREAS, the mission of the Starr-Iva Water & Sewer
9 District is to provide safe, high quality water
10 services to the community while maintaining a standard
11 of excellence in customer service and environmental
12 conservation; and
13 WHEREAS, Starr-Iva Water & Sewer District has six
14 full-time employees who serve 4,300 customers with more
15 than 200 miles of pipe in Anderson and Abbeville
16 counties; and
17 WHEREAS, Starr-Iva Water & Sewer District was named
18 the 2021 South Carolina Rural Water System of the Year
19 by the South Carolina Rural Water Association at the
20 Association’s annual conference on November 17th; and
21 WHEREAS, the selection criteria for the award
22 include innovation & technology, efficiency, and
23 capital improvement projects.
24 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
25 County Council hereby congratulates Starr-Iva Water &
26 Sewer District for winning statewide recognition and,
27 on behalf of the citizens of Anderson County, thanks
28 the District’s board of directors and staff for their
29 committed, dedicated service.
30 This be resolved in a meeting duly assembled this
31 4th day of January, 2022.  
32 Mr. Chairman, I bring this in the form of a motion.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
34 by Mr. Graham.  Have a second?
35 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms.
37 Wilson.  Any discussion?  
38 I just want to echo Mr. Graham’s sentiments.  I
39 know it’s a great honor for y’all to receive that and
40 we really do appreciate what y’all do.  A lot of times
41 I think a lot of citizens take water for granted.  But
42 if you have the trouble we did here a few years ago
43 with some of the treatment at the water plant out
44 there, you know what it’s like to have good, clean
45 water.  We’re very fortunate to have that and
46 appreciate the water systems we have in Anderson County
47 and what all y’all do.  Thank y’all very, very much.
48 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman?
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, Mr.
50 Graham.



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - January 4, 2022
5

1 RAY GRAHAM:  Just want to
2 commend you guys.  Mike, I know you’re representing the
3 Board of Directors and also as Chairman.  Patrick, you
4 know, you’re both -- your entire team is to be
5 commended on the job you guys do for the community.  I
6 think our -- you know, I’m going to probably be a
7 little bit more bias, but I mean, I think our water
8 district has really came a long ways up under y’all’s
9 leadership and continues to improve daily.  And
10 definitely look forward to working with you on other
11 projects that we’ve got coming up.  But definitely
12 appreciate your dedication and commitment to our
13 community and everything you guys do.  Thank you.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
15 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
16 All opposed like sign.  Mr. Sanders, how you vote?
17 BRETT SANDERS:  I vote in favor
18 of Councilman Graham’s motion.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
20 Show the motion carries unanimously.
21 Mr. Graham.
22 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman,
23 I’d ask if y’all could up.  Be glad to present this to
24 you.
25 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Graham.
27 RAY GRAHAM:  Just want to
28 recognize Ms. Lisa.  Mike, we realize behind every good
29 man is a very good woman.  So, Ms. Lisa, it’s always
30 good seeing you.  Appreciate everything you do in the
31 community, as well.  But it’s definitely great seeing
32 you guys tonight and appreciate everything y’all do. 
33 Thank you.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all. 
35 At this time we’ll be adjourned.  We’ll reconvene back
36 and start the meeting back at 6:30.
37
38 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:14 P.M.)



6

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 4, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS - Via Zoom
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
GLENN DAVIS
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
JANIE TURMON



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
7

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time
2 I’d like to call the regular Anderson County Council
3 meeting to order of January 4th, our first meeting of
4 the year.  We welcome each and every one of you here. 
5 For the record, let is show Councilman Brett Sanders is
6 on Zoom and will join us.  He’s got some sickness. 
7 Wish him a speedy recovery.
8 Next on the agenda has got Mr. Sanders.  Since he’s
9 not here and all, we’re going to ask Councilman John
10 Wright, Jr. if he would lead us in the invocation and
11 pledge of allegiance.  If we’d all rise, please.
12 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JOHN WRIGHT
13 TOMMY DUNN:   The first order
14 of business tonight is election of chairman and vice
15 chairman.  We’ll take nominations now for chairman.
16 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair?
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Davis.
18 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, I
19 would like to nominate you for chairman once again.  I
20 think your record is impeccable and all that you’ve
21 done for Anderson County.  And I’m excited for our
22 future under your leadership.  And I would like to
23 nominate you for chairman.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate ---
25 CINDY WILSON:  I’ll second
26 that.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   I appreciate
28 that Mr. Davis, and I appreciate that Ms. Wilson.  Any
29 more nominations?  Seeing and hearing none, nominations
30 will be closed.  All in favor of Chairman Dunn
31 remaining the chairman, say aye. 
32 COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Aye.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   That was Brett,
34 too.  I heard it loud and clear.  Mr. Sanders.  That
35 was unanimous, let the record show.
36 Now nomination for vice chairman.
37 CINDY WILSON:  Mr. Chairman?
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
39 CINDY WILSON:  May I have the
40 honor of nominating Mr. Brett Sanders to be our vice
41 chairman.
42 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
43 CINDY WILSON:  Put that in the
44 form of a motion.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
46 motion by Ms. Wilson and second by Mr. Jimmy Davis for
47 Brett Sanders for vice chair.  Any other nominations? 
48 Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of Mr. Sanders,
49 say aye.
50 COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Aye.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
8

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Show Mr.
2 Sanders ayes, like sign.  Opposed?  Show the motion
3 carries unanimously.
4 Moving on, item number 5, approval of minutes.  We
5 do not have the minutes to be approved tonight.  The
6 lady that does our recordings and stuff, my
7 understanding is under the weather.  Is that correct? 
8 So hopefully she’ll get to feeling better or we’ll do
9 something else.  We’re getting a little behind on that. 
10 That’s where that stands.
11 We’re going to move on to item number 6, citizens
12 comments.  This is on agenda matters only.  You have
13 three minutes.  Please when Mr. Harmon calls your name
14 for the record state your name and district for the
15 record and address the chair, please.  And again, it’s
16 agenda items only.  Mr. Harmon.
17 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman,
18 no one is signed up.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
20 Harmon.
21 Moving on to item number 7, third readings.  There
22 are none.  
23 So we’ll be moving on now to item number 8(a),
24 ordinance second reading.  
25 This will be 2021-074, an Ordinance to amend an
26 agreement for the development of a joint county
27 industrial and business park (2010 Park) of Anderson
28 and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park to
29 include certain property of Equinox Mill LLC; and other
30 matters related thereto.
31 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
32 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
34 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
35 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
37 Glenn Davis.  Now discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
38 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman,
39 thank you and members of council.  This is a project
40 that will be renovating the property at Equinox Mill on
41 Jackson Street, bringing thirty-nine million dollars of
42 capital investment, housing and multi- -- well, mixed
43 use in the word I was looking for -- mixed use
44 opportunities there for that place that’s now a
45 disaster.  And this comes to council as a
46 recommendation from staff, as well as from the Economic
47 Development Advisory Board.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
49 Nelson.  Any more discussion?  I just want to say I’m
50 looking forward to this.  I think it’s going to be



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
9

1 great for Anderson County.  Like I’ve said in the past,
2 that’s a -- Jackson Street is a main thoroughfare into
3 the city.  And I just think it’s great to clean that up
4 and finally getting this moving forward, after working
5 for a number of years trying to get something done on
6 that.  Looking forward to it.  All in favor of the
7 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
8 motion -- Mr. Sanders, you saying you ---
9 BRETT SANDERS:  Aye.  Yes, sir.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  All
11 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
12 unanimously.
13 We’re going to move on to item number 8(b), that’s 
14 2021-075, an Ordinance to amend an agreement for the
15 development of a joint county industrial and business
16 park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so
17 as to enlarge the park; and other matters related
18 thereto.
19 Do we have a motion to move this forward?  Motion
20 Ms. Wilson.  Do we have a second?
21 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
23 Glenn Davis.  Now discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
24 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
25 Chairman.  This is another opportunity that Greenville
26 County has for a multi-site industrial park.  And they
27 request that we put that in our Anderson/Greenville
28 Multi-County Park Agreement.  That gives them some
29 opportunities and incentives that are based on state
30 statute.  This comes to council as a recommendation
31 from staff, as well as the Economic Development
32 Advisory Board.  Greenville County Council sends its
33 appreciation for your consideration.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Any
35 more discussion?  Hearing and seeing none, all in favor
36 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
37 And Mr. Sanders.
38 BRETT SANDERS:  Aye.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Show the motion
40 carries unanimously.
41 We’re going to move on now to item (c), 8(c),
42 2021-076, an Ordinance to amend an agreement for the
43 development of a joint county industrial and business
44 park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so
45 as to enlarge the park to include certain property of
46 Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc.; and other matters
47 related thereto.  This is Project Greenlight.  Do we
48 have a motion to put this on the floor?  Motion Ms.
49 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
50 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
10

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
2 Jimmy Davis.  Now discussion.  Mr. Nelson, you want to
3 start us off?
4 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
5 Chairman, members of council.  This is the Old Dominion
6 property, creating twenty-seven jobs, with an average
7 pay of twenty-eight forty-six an hour.  Annual payroll
8 of 1.5 million.  And this is a request to place them in
9 the Multi-County Park Agreement that we have so that
10 they may access incentives that are based on state
11 statute.  This comes to council as a recommendation
12 from staff, as well as from the Economic Development
13 Advisory Board.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Any
15 more discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of the
16 motion show of hands.  
17 BRETT SANDERS:  Aye.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Show Mr.
19 Sanders in favor.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
20 motion carries unanimously.
21 We’re going to move on now to number 8(d), 2021-
22 077, an Ordinance authorizing and approving (1) The
23 development of a joint county industrial and business
24 park pursuant to section 4-1-170 of the Code of South
25 Carolina 1976, as amended, in conjunction with
26 Greenville County (The “Park”), such park to be
27 geographically located in Greenville County; (2) the
28 execution and delivery of a written park agreement with
29 Greenville County as to the requirement of payments of
30 fee in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to park
31 property and the sharing of the revenues and expenses
32 of the park; (3) the distribution of revenues from the
33 park with Anderson County; and (4) other matters
34 related thereto.  This is Project Ott.
35 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor? 
36 Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do we have a second?
37 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
39 Glenn Davis.  Now discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
40 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
41 Chairman, members of council.  This is an unannounced
42 project in Greenville County that is requesting an
43 opportunity to be in the Multi-County Park Agreement
44 for incentives that are based on state statute.  And
45 this comes to council as a recommendation from the
46 Economic Development Advisory Board and staff, as well. 
47 Greenville County sends its appreciation for your
48 consideration of this project.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Any more
50 discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
11

1 the motion say aye.  
2 BRETT SANDERS:  Aye.
3 COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Aye.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   All opposed
5 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
6 Moving on to item number 9(a), first reading, 
7 2022-001, an Ordinance authorizing the execution and
8 delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and
9 between Anderson County, South Carolina and a company
10 known to the County at this time as Project Faith with
11 respect to certain economic development property in the
12 County, whereby such property will be subject to
13 certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the
14 provision of certain special source credits; and other
15 matters related thereto.
16 Do we have a motion to move this forward?  
17 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
19 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
20 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
22 Jimmy Davis.  Now discussion.  We’ll start with Mr.
23 Nelson.
24 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman,
25 members of council, thank you for the opportunity to
26 present this project.  This is one of our great local,
27 family-owned companies that has been growing for over
28 forty years and has done very well, and continues to
29 grow.  And this is an opportunity for them to grow
30 further with a 2.8 million dollar capital investment,
31 creating ten jobs and actually they think many more,
32 with an average pay of twenty-four dollars and forty-
33 six cents an hour.  Just adding ten jobs, the annual
34 payroll is almost a half a million dollars a year
35 adding to our economy.  Their taxes paid in 2021, a
36 little over twelve thousand.  And with the new project,
37 this will add an additional twenty thousand dollars a
38 year.  There is a tax illustration in your packet that
39 shows all the property taxes over the next thirty
40 years.  The thirty-year total is five hundred and
41 seventy-three thousand, approximately, in total
42 property taxes just on this project.  And community
43 impact the first year -- well, years one through five
44 is 5.6 million, and over thirty years is thirty-one
45 million; a little over thirty-one million.  This comes
46 to council as a recommendation from staff, as well as
47 the Economic Development Advisory Board.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
49 Nelson.  Any more discussion?  Hearing and seeing none,
50 all in favor say aye.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
12

1 COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Aye.
2 TOMMY DUNN:   All opposed
3 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
4 We’re going to move on now to item number 9(b), 
5 2022-002, an Ordinance to provide for redistricting of
6 the seven County Council districts of Anderson County,
7 as to population, prior to the next general election
8 cycle following the adoption by the State of South
9 Carolina of the 2020 Decennial Census, pursuant to
10 section 4-9-90, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976,
11 as amended; and other matters related thereto. 
12 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?  
13 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
15 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
16 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Ray
18 Graham.  Now discussion.  Mr. Burns, Mr. Newton, either
19 one of y’all have anything to say or add?  I know Mr.
20 Newton has worked on this very, very hard, and we
21 appreciate all the work you’ve done on this.  And there
22 will be public hearings on this coming up and input if
23 anybody wants to have any say on this.  Anybody else? 
24 Any more comments?  Hearing and seeing none, all in
25 favor of the motion show of hands.  
26 BRETT SANDERS:  Aye.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Sanders’
28 aye.  Show the motion -- opposed like sign.  Show the
29 motion carries unanimously.  
30 We’re going to move over now to item number 10(a),
31 resolutions.  This is 10(a), R2022-003, a Resolution
32 authorizing the execution and delivery of an inducement
33 agreement by and between Anderson County, South
34 Carolina and Project Faith, whereby, under certain
35 conditions, Anderson County will execute a fee in lieu
36 of tax and special source credit agreement with respect
37 to a project in the County whereby the project would be
38 subject to payment of certain fees in lieu of taxes,
39 and whereby Project Faith will be provided certain
40 credits against fee payments in reimbursement of
41 investment in related qualified infrastructure; and
42 providing for related matters.
43 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
44 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
46 Wilson.  Do we have a second?  Second by Mr. Glenn
47 Davis.  Now discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
48 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
49 Chairman.  This is the same project and company that we
50 covered under item 9(a).  Great family company. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
13

1 Opportunity creating ten jobs.  Investing 2.8 million
2 dollars in our community, and continuing to grow.  And
3 this comes to council as a recommendation from staff,
4 as well as the Economic Development Advisory Board.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
6 Anyone else?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of
7 the motion say aye.
8 BRETT SANDERS:  Aye.
9 COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Aye.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   All opposed
11 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
12 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you for
13 your support.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, and
15 for what all your team does for the citizens of
16 Anderson County making sure we’ve got good paying jobs
17 for our citizens.  Thank y’all.
18 We’re going to move on now at this time to item
19 number 11, bid approval.  Be 11(a), bid number 22-027,
20 this comes from the ACTC resurfacing.  Mr. Carroll.
21 ROBERT CARROLL:   Thank you, Mr.
22 Chairman.  This is for three roads, as you can see on
23 the attachment; one in the Powdersville area, one in
24 the Belton area and one over near Lake Hartwell.  Staff
25 recommends award to Pickens Construction for five
26 hundred ninety-six thousand six eighty-three point
27 thirty.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a
29 motion to put this forward?
30 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
31 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
33 Wilson; second by Ray Graham, Councilman Graham.  Any
34 discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of
35 the motion show of hands.
36 BRETT SANDERS:  Aye.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Show Mr.
38 Sanders’ aye.  Any opposition, like sign.  Show the
39 motion carries unanimously.
40 We’re going to move on to bid approval of 11(b),
41 bid number 22-029, ASEC field lighting.  Mr. Carroll.
42 ROBERT CARROLL:   Thank you, Mr.
43 Chairman.  This is for lighting of the fields here at
44 the sports complex.  And at this time staff recommends
45 award of the base bid only, which will be the two
46 newest fields that has no lighting currently.  So we
47 just want to do the lighting to those two fields for a
48 base price of four hundred sixty-nine thousand five
49 hundred dollars.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
14

1 motion to move this forward?
2 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
4 Wilson.  Do we have a second?  Second by Glenn Davis. 
5 Any discussion, questions?  Seeing and hearing none,
6 all in favor of the motion show of hands.
7 BRETT SANDERS:  Aye.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Show Mr.
9 Sanders said aye.  Any opposition like sign.  Show the
10 motion carries unanimously.
11 Thank you, Mr. Carroll.  Appreciate it.
12 We’re going to move on to item number 13, road
13 acceptance into the county inventory.  This is 13(a)
14 Shackleburg Farms Subdivision Phase II.  This is in
15 District 4, Mr. Sanders’ district.  This is Fern Hollow
16 -- I’m sorry.  I missed item number 12.
17 Go back to item number 12, that’s the AED/Public
18 Safety, Chairman Graham with the Public Safety
19 Committee.  Mr. Chairman.
20 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
21 Chairman.  I bring this in the form of a motion to full
22 council.  Basically this proposal, what it will do is
23 put new AEDs in the hands of every fire department in
24 Anderson County.  Naturally they’ll have a choice as
25 far as whether or not they want to accept it.  People
26 has mixed feelings on that.  They’re located in most of
27 your public buildings.  Literally there’s no training
28 involved in even being able to use them.  It’s pretty
29 much instructional based on the device itself.  But yet
30 it brings so much value to our communities.  And this
31 is just something Public Safety and Council that has
32 been briefed on this felt that it would be a good
33 opportunity to put in the hands of the local fire
34 departments.  
35 Basically what we’re doing is getting them for
36 around thirteen hundred dollars a piece.  Probably end
37 up being the purchasing of twenty-seven to thirty AEDs. 
38 Again, some departments might choose not to accept it,
39 so that number might change.  But that just kind of
40 gives you an idea.  I bring this in the form of a
41 motion and ask Council for their support on providing
42 this to our local fire departments.
43 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   We’ve got a
45 motion by Mr. Graham; got a second from Brett Sanders,
46 Councilman Sanders.  Any discussion?  I think this is a
47 good idea.  There are many fire departments so some
48 might already have these AEDs.  This is not only a
49 benefit for the citizens, it’s a benefit for our first
50 responders who’s out on the scene.  Could very well



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
15

1 this to be a lifesaving thing.  And as Mr. Graham said,
2 these things have got so advanced and so much better,
3 they tell you what you do.  You can’t mess them up. 
4 They tell you step by step what you need to do.  This
5 is a great tool, great thing for our citizens of
6 Anderson County.  Anyone else? 
7 RAY GRAHAM:  I’m sorry.  One
8 other thing just for everybody’s knowledge.  Steve’s
9 crew, Anderson County EMS System, they will basically
10 help maintain these, ensure that the batteries stay
11 good and also the pads and stuff’s made available.  So
12 even after the fire departments get them, it’s not like
13 we’re giving them something that’s going to cost them
14 money to maintain.  We will maintain those supplies
15 that they need and also offer any training that they
16 would like, as well.  Thank you.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  All
18 in favor of the motion say aye.
19 COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Aye.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   All opposed
21 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
22 Now we’ll move on to item number 13, road
23 acceptance into the county inventory, 13(a), be
24 Shackleburg Farm Subdivision, Phase II, it’s in
25 District 4.  It’s Fern Hollow Trail.  Do I have a
26 motion to move this forward?
27 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms.
29 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
30 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
32 Glenn Davis.  Now discussion.  I’m assuming Mr. -- just
33 for the record, Mr. Burns, this has met all our county
34 specifications?
35 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir. 
36 Everything has been approved and ---
37 TOMMY DUNN:   By our Road
38 Department.  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Any more
39 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of hands.
40 BRETT SANDERS:  Aye.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Show Mr.
42 Sanders is in favor of it.  All opposed like sign. 
43 Show the motion carries unanimously.
44 Now we’re going to be moving on to item number 14,
45 request by council members.  Do we have any?  Mr.
46 Davis?
47 JIMMY DAVIS:  No, sir.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Glenn
49 Davis?
50 GLENN DAVIS:  No, sir.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
16

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Ray Graham?
2 RAY GRAHAM:  No, sir.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Wright?
4 JOHN WRIGHT:  No, sir.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson?  
6 I’d like to -- it’s come to my attention and we’ve
7 done this before.  I think Mr. Graham -- go ahead Mr.
8 Graham.
9 RAY GRAHAM:  I didn’t think
10 it was on there.  What did we say?
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Requesting two
12 hundred dollars.
13 RAY GRAHAM:  I apologize. 
14 This wasn’t on my notes.  I’d like to request two
15 hundred dollars for the Crescent Elite Shooters for --
16 basically it’s the Elite Shooters for the high school
17 team down there.  We’ve done this on several occasions. 
18 Very active team.  Lot of scholars are gained with
19 that.  But I bring that in the form of a motion.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a
21 motion by Mr. Graham.  Have a second?
22 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
24 Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
25 motion show of hands. 
26 BRETT SANDERS:  Aye.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Opposed like
28 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.  Show Mr. 
29 -- for the record, Mr. Sanders is in favor.
30 I would also, out of District 5's special
31 appropriation account would like to appropriate two
32 hundred dollars for the Crescent Sharpshooters.  Put
33 that in the form of a motion.  Second Ms. Wilson.  Any
34 discussion?  All in favor of the motion say aye.
35 COUNCIL MEMBERS:  Aye.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   All opposed
37 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
38 We’re going to move on now to administrator’s
39 report.
40 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this
41 time, Mr. Chairman.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to
43 move on now to item 16, citizens comments.  When Mr.
44 Harmon calls your name, please step forward and address
45 the chair.  You have three minutes.  Mr. Harmon.
46 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman,
47 we have one citizens signed up.  Jill O’Connor.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Ma’am?  Okay.  
49 Moving on, remarks from council members.  Jimmy
50 Davis.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
17

1 JIMMY DAVIS:  I have nothing,
2 sir.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Brett
4 Sanders.
5 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, Mr.
6 Chairman.  First of all, I’d like to apologize to
7 District 4 of Anderson County and my fellow council
8 members for my absence today.  I know we have a lot of
9 employees sick.  I want to keep every one in our
10 prayers for them and their family.  I’d also like to
11 congratulate you, Mr. Dunn, for your nomination as
12 chairman.  And I truly appreciate all that you do for
13 all districts in Anderson County.  And I’m thankful for
14 the opportunity to serve as vice chairman, and I look
15 forward to my continued work for District 4, work with
16 my fellow council members in 2022.  Just a big thanks
17 out to all the council members, staff and employees and
18 all their service, and I hope to see you guys soon. 
19 Thank you.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
21 Moving on now, Mr. Glenn Davis.
22 GLENN DAVIS:  Yes, sir, Mr.
23 Chairman.  I’d like to piggyback on what Councilman
24 Sanders said.  Congratulations to yourself and to Vice
25 Chairman Sanders.  Looking forward to a wonderful year
26 in 2022, continuing to move Anderson County in a
27 progressive manner.  Again, I thank all of my fellow
28 councilmen and women, and again I just look forward to
29 working with all of you.  Thank you.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Mr.
31 Ray Graham.
32 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you. 
33 Just the same thing.  Mr. Chairman, Brett, definitely
34 been a privilege working with you guys this past year. 
35 And definitely look forward to seeing y’all’s continued
36 leadership of Council as we move forward into 2022, and
37 just continue to move our county forward.  And
38 definitely appreciate everything you guys do.  And look
39 forward to hitting the ground running on a new year.  I
40 know we’ve got a lot of things planned ahead.  So
41 definitely look forward to what our county brings us.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
43 Graham.  Mr. Wright.
44 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
45 Chairman.  I just want to echo my other councilmen’s
46 comments in regards to congratulating you and Mr.
47 Sanders on vice chairman.  2021 was a great first year
48 for me getting to be on this Council.  And I’m just
49 excited for what’s to come in 2022.  
50 Also just want to make mention, I spoke with Mr.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
18

1 Burns about this.  I think I mentioned it last meeting,
2 but this month we will be getting together and having
3 our first litter committee meeting.  So Mr. Glenn Davis
4 and Ms. Wilson will be getting together in the next few
5 weeks, and I’ve already spoken with a couple of
6 citizens that have some interest in participating, as
7 well.  So that’s another way we can bring value to this
8 county and help make it a wonderful place to live, work
9 and play.  So I’m excited to be a part of it.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate
11 y’all taking part in doing that.  And that will be a
12 public meeting and it’ll be announced.  Hope we have a
13 packed room.
14 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
16 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr.
17 Chairman.  I just want to say thank you to our citizens
18 and our wonderful team of public servants for the
19 wonderful effective way we all work together.  And I
20 greatly appreciate the opportunity.  
21 Like Mr. Wright, we will be convening the Planning
22 and Public Works Committee meeting soon.  All you have
23 to do is drive around and look at the incredible amount
24 of construction in our county.  And I cannot believe we
25 have developers who literally bulldoze every blade of
26 grass, every tree, re-contour the property, flatten
27 everything.  Consequently it’s very ugly. 
28 Unfortunately it also contributes to a terrible
29 sedimentation and stormwater runoff problem.  And it
30 looks like our current ordinances and regulations are
31 inadequate.  I know I drove by one yesterday.  There’s
32 no excuse for it to be bulldozed like it was.  The pond
33 that has never been more than crystal clear blue is
34 solid red.  And some of this is coming through the
35 city’s annexing of property into our county and they do
36 not have better quality standards that the county has. 
37 Unfortunately we’re going to need to look at upgrading
38 our standards, too.  What we used to take for granted
39 as common sense no longer seems to be there.  So we’ll
40 work on that together.  Thank you.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Ms.
42 Wilson.  I want to first of all congratulate Councilman
43 Sanders for being chosen again for vice chairman.  And
44 he owes no one an apology.  Appreciate him coming here
45 tonight although he’s under the weather, but showing up
46 tonight and representing your district in Anderson
47 County and appreciate the fine job you’ve done in the
48 past and continue to do, I know, in the future.
49 I want to thank my fellow council members for
50 showing the confidence in me to, again, lead this



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 4, 2022
19

1 council.  I’m no better than nobody else.  I’ve always
2 said this, it’s our staff and our employees who makes
3 Anderson County great.  It’s a team effort.  Team
4 Anderson County.  And that’s what the success we’ve
5 had.  I’ve enjoyed the past year and enjoying getting
6 to know Mr. Glenn Davis and working with him and the 
7 same with Councilman John Wright.  I think 2022 can
8 only be bigger and better things.  Got a lot of work to
9 do and a lot of things, but I think things are looking
10 up.  It’s come a long way.  And look forward to making
11 it better for the citizens of Anderson County. 
12 Appreciate what all our staff has done and county
13 employees.  I want to make sure everybody tries to stay
14 as safe as possible.  It’s some tough times.  
15 And just for the record so everybody will know, the
16 next council meeting will be done at the Civic Center,
17 too.  We had two public hearings and we’ve already
18 advertised that.  Trying to stay on the safe side. 
19 We’re sorry for any inconvenience it might be for
20 somebody.  But we’re going to try to err on the caution
21 for safety as much as possible as we can under the
22 leadership of our administrator who is in charge of
23 this.  And Council, I think, fully supports him and
24 backs him on his endeavors for this.  We’ve got some
25 employees that have been sick and they’re still sick
26 and we hope for them to have a speedy recovery, we wish
27 and pray for them and their families.
28 Appreciate everybody.  Thank y’all for coming out. 
29 Be adjourned.
30
31 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:59 P.M.)



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

JANUARY 18, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
JIMMY DAVIS
GLENN DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - January 18, 2022
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   I’d like to
2 call the special presentation meeting of Tuesday,
3 January the 18th, 2022 to order.  I’d like to welcome
4 each and every one of you here tonight and thank y’all
5 for coming out on not such a great night.  But we’re
6 still here to do the people’s business of Anderson
7 County.  
8 At this time Resolution 2(a) will be postponed due
9 to weather until the February first meeting; until we
10 have our first meeting in February.
11 We’re going to move on now to item number 2(b),
12 Proclamation.  This is a Proclamation designating
13 February 2022 as Black History Month in Anderson
14 County.  This is coming from all council members. 
15 Honorable Councilman John Wright will introduce this.
16 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
17 Chairman.  This is, again, a Proclamation designating
18 February 2022 as Black History Month in Anderson
19 County.
20 WHEREAS, Black History Month, observed in February
21 of each year, honors, affirms, and emphasizes the
22 significance of Black history and the many
23 contributions of African Americans to American life,
24 society, and culture, as we know it; and
25 WHEREAS, Black History Month provides an
26 opportunity for all Americans to reflect on the
27 rich history and achievements of people of African
28 descent; and
29 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Human Relations
30 Council, the local NAACP chapter, the local
31 African-American Churches, and many individuals
32 throughout Anderson County foster civic, economic, and
33 educational programs that bear witness to the progress,
34 beauty, and achievements of African Americans in
35 Anderson County; and
36 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council sets aside
37 this special time to acknowledge African Americans in
38 Anderson County, past and present;
39 NOW, THEREFORE, the Anderson County Council does
40 hereby proclaim the month of February 2022 as BLACK
41 HISTORY MONTH in Anderson County, encouraging all
42 residents to recognize the importance of Black history
43 throughout our county, participating in countywide
44 activities that promote unity for the betterment of our
45 communities, celebrating the diversity and character of
46 our community, and highlighting the importance of
47 sharing our culture and customs as the County observes
48 and commemorates Black History Month.
49 Proclaimed this 18th day of January, 2022. 
50 Mr. Chairman, I bring that in the form of a motion.



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - January 18, 2022
3

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
2 by Mr. Wright.  Do I have a second?
3 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   I think that’s
5 a second from all council members.  Any discussion? 
6 Hearing and seeing none, all in favor of the motion say
7 aye.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
8 unanimously.
9 We will adjourn at this time.  We’ll reconvene back
10 here at 6:30 for the start of our regular council
11 meeting.
12
13 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:07 P.M.)



4

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 18, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
GLENN DAVIS
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
5

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time we
2 would like to call the regular meeting of January the
3 18th to order.  We’d like to welcome each and every one
4 of you here tonight.  Thank you for coming out.  
5 At this time I’d like to ask the Honorable Brett
6 Sanders if he would lead us in the invocation and
7 pledge of allegiance, please.  If we’d all rise.
8 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY BRETT SANDERS
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Before we get
10 started, there’s a couple of things.  Ms. Wilson is
11 feeling a little bit under the weather.  She will not
12 be here tonight.  Let’s keep her in our thoughts and
13 prayers and wish her a speedy recovery.
14 And I believe we’ve got a gentleman back here in
15 the back from the boy scouts.  What troop are you with,
16 sir?  234.  Welcome.  Appreciate you coming out.
17 Has everybody had a chance or want to look over the
18 December 7th, 2021 minutes?  Do we have any corrections
19 or changed to be made?  Want to make a motion to move
20 them forward?
21 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
22 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
23 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Davis,
24 Jimmy Davis, makes the motion.  Mr. Wright seconds it. 
25 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
26 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
27 Moving on to December 9th, 2021 minutes.  Are there
28 any corrections or changes to be made to them?  Do we
29 have a motion to move these forward?
30 GLENN DAVIS:  So moved.
31 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion by Mr.
33 Glenn Davis; second by Mr. John Wright, Jr.  All in
34 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
35 sign.  And I’m sorry Council Graham seconded those
36 minutes.  And let the record show we don’t have the
37 21st of December or the January 4th yet.  
38 At this time in our process will be citizens’
39 comments for citizens that signed up.  You have three
40 minutes.  This is for agenda matters only.  It’s my
41 understanding no one has signed up, so we’ll be moving
42 on.
43 Ordinance third readings, there are none.
44 Ordinance second readings, this will be 6(a), 
45 2022-001, an Ordinance authorizing the execution and
46 delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and
47 between Anderson County, South Carolina and a company
48 known to the County at this time as Project Faith with
49 respect to certain economic development property in the
50 County, whereby such property will be subject to



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
6

1 certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the
2 provision of certain special source credits; and other
3 matters related thereto.
4 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
5 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
7 Sanders.  Do we have a second?
8 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Was that Mr.
10 Graham?
11 RAY GRAHAM:  Graham.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Graham
13 seconds that.  Now discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
14 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
15 Chairman, members of council.  This is a local family-
16 owned company with a great history of success.  They’re
17 investing 2.8 million dollars in capital investment in
18 their company, creating a minimum of ten jobs, with an
19 average pay of twenty-four dollars an hour, which is
20 just on those jobs is almost a half million dollars of
21 additional annual payroll, and added to Anderson
22 County’s economy.  Taxes paid in ‘21, twelve thousand
23 six hundred and twenty-eight dollars.  Projected new
24 taxes on the new investment, twenty thousand.  And over
25 the next thirty years, five hundred and seventy-three
26 thousand.  With a community impact of 5.6 million in
27 the first five years and over the twenty year period,
28 thirty-one million.  These things come to council with
29 a recommendation from staff, as well as the Economic
30 Development Advisory Board.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
32 Nelson.  Appreciate it.  Any more discussion?  Seeing
33 and hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of
34 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
35 unanimously.
36 Moving on now to item number 6(b), 2022-002, an
37 Ordinance to provide for redistricting of the seven
38 County Council districts of Anderson County, as to
39 population, prior to the next general election cycle
40 following the adoption by the State of South Carolina
41 of the 2020 Decennial Census, pursuant to section
42 4-9-90, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as
43 amended; and other matters related thereto.
44 This is a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak
45 to this matter, please step forward and state your name
46 and district and address the chair, please.  And this
47 is the second reading.  There will be another reading
48 before this goes to final.  Anyone at all?  It’s a
49 public hearing.  Seeing and hearing none, the public
50 hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to move



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
7

1 this forward?
2 JOHN WRIGHT:  So moved.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
4 Wright.  Do we have a second?
5 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr.
7 Davis, Mr. Glenn Davis.  Now discussion.  Seeing and
8 hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
9 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
10 unanimously.
11 Moving on to item number 7(a), first reading,
12 2022-003, an Ordinance to amend an agreement for the
13 development of a joint county industrial and business
14 park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so
15 as to enlarge the park; and other matters related
16 thereto.  Will be Project Spruce.  Do we have a motion
17 to put this on the floor?
18 JOHN WRIGHT:  So moved.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
20 Sanders; second by Mr. Wright.  Now discussion.  Mr.
21 Nelson.
22 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
23 Chairman.  This is a project in Greenville County that
24 we actually passed the Multi-County Park Agreement in
25 November of 2020 and they’re adding additional property
26 and they request that we give approval of that from
27 Council.  And as you know, this is a Multi-County Park
28 Agreement where we have reciprocal agreement with
29 Greenville County and Anderson and to get the same
30 benefits for Anderson County.  This comes to council as
31 a recommendation from staff, as well as from the
32 Economic Development Advisory Board.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Any more
34 discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of
35 the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
36 the motion carries unanimously.
37 Thank you, Mr. Nelson.  Appreciate you and your
38 team for all y’all do.
39 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir. 
40 Thank you for your support.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to
42 move on now to item number 7(b), 2022-004, an Ordinance
43 to amend section 38-311(c) of the Anderson County,
44 South Carolina Code of Ordinances to add an additional
45 subsection to establish a time frame for consideration
46 of previously disapproved projects by the Planning
47 Commission; and other matters related thereto.  
48 Put this in the form of a motion to move this
49 forward?  
50 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
8

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
2 Davis, Jimmy Davis.  Now open the floor up for
3 discussion.
4 I’ll start off and explain what this is.  It’s in
5 title only.  Next -- talked to Mr. Harmon and Mr.
6 Burns, several council members.  Next reading we’ll
7 have some language for this.  But in a nutshell what
8 this is and what this is for is if a subdivision that’s
9 been disapproved, you can automatically come back,
10 whether it’s five times or six times, ever how many
11 times, keep coming back and just making a minor change
12 to it; keep coming back.  Personally that’s happened
13 here lately in the last year or so more times than it
14 should have.  I don’t think it’s fair to the citizens
15 who live in that district who oppose some of these
16 things, nor do I think it’s fair to the Planning
17 Commission members to have to go through this.  
18 So what I’m asking, and I want input from other
19 council members, I’m asking for like a -- if it fails
20 twice before it can come back up a third time it has to
21 have a six-month grace period.  And I’m open for it to
22 come back up before council -- I mean before it comes
23 before the Planning Commission again.  
24 So that’s why I’m -- I’m open to change the time,
25 anything else.  I know it’s going to be going through
26 probably a committee or so, but I wanted to get this
27 first reading and get it started, because we’ve got a
28 lot of stuff going on in the county now.  Like I said,
29 I just don’t think it’s right for the citizens to keep
30 having to come back to meetings.  They think it’s
31 against them.  And plus the same with the Planning
32 Commission to keep having to come up with something,
33 when it’s just a very minute changed.  Any more
34 discussion?
35 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
37 RAY GRAHAM:  So in doing
38 this, number one, the developer would have -- my
39 understanding that when they present it that second
40 time, they’ve either got to make changes that’s going
41 to suit and be welcome in the community or they’re
42 going to have to wait the six months.  I mean to me
43 that would give them a little bit more initiative to
44 pursue that even ground, I guess, to kind of appease
45 people.  And even so, after six months they could still
46 re-present it?  Am I understand that correct?
47 TOMMY DUNN:   That’s correct.
48 RAY GRAHAM:  I definitely
49 think it would bring a more fair base to the community
50 doing it that way.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
9

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all. 
2 Any more discussion?
3 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman?
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.
5 JOHN WRIGHT:  Just for
6 clarification, the way the current ordinance reads is
7 that any sort of change; correct, no matter how minute
8 that change may be, gives the developer the opportunity
9 to come back to the Planning Commission over and over
10 and over. 
11 TOMMY DUNN:   That’s right.
12 JOHN WRIGHT:  Is that right?
13 TOMMY DUNN:   That’s right. 
14 And we’ve had some in the last year and a half to two
15 years, I mean they might get turned down in November
16 and they’re right back in December.  Not even no time.  
17 RAY GRAHAM:  I guess more
18 important than anything is it’s going to prevent the
19 opportunity of just absolutely wasting our resources.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Yep.
21 RAY GRAHAM:  So I mean
22 that’s probably the biggest key here.  I know our
23 staff, especially right now, we are so blessed with
24 development in our county.  But I mean in doing so, it
25 kind of ties our hands where they’ve got to be more
26 responsible to try to present a plan that’s going to be
27 open-minded to the community.  So I mean, again, I mean
28 it just seems to be a win-win doing it that way.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   I appreciate
30 it.  Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion show of
31 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
32 unanimously.  Thank y’all.
33 We’ll be moving on to item 8(a), Resolutions,
34 R2022-004 -- bear with me -- a Resolution to certify
35 property at and adjacent to Equinox Mill, 200 Jackson
36 Street, Anderson SC as an abandoned textile mill site
37 (Tax Map numbers 1231102014; 1231103002; 1231102028;
38 1231209001; 1231102015; 1231205003).  
39 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
40 BRETT SANDERS:  So moved.
41 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
43 Sanders; second by Mr. Graham.  Mr. Burns, do you want
44 to ---
45 RUSTY BURNS:  In order for
46 the developer to receive textile mill tax credits, the
47 council has to certify that that was used as a textile
48 mill operation.  That opens the door for them to take
49 advantage of that.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   And it most



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
10

1 definitely was used as a textile mill for many years. 
2 Any more discussion?  All in favor of the motion show
3 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
4 carries unanimously.
5 We’re going to move on now to item number 9, Hope
6 Missions Lease Agreement amendment.  Mr. Burns.
7 RAY GRAHAM:  This is the old
8 Health Department building.  We have let a group, Hope
9 Missions of the Upstate use part of that building for a
10 thing to serve breakfast to the homeless.  Councilman
11 Wright has attended that; Councilman Davis has been
12 there.  Over the past four days we’ve used that as an
13 overnight homeless shelter.  I think last night we had
14 nineteen.  Tonight it’s going to be cold, so we’ll
15 probably have that.  And we just want to kind of firm
16 that agreement up.  But they provided a great service
17 to us and a lot of volunteers participated.  And that’s
18 what -- this is the first step to solidify that.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a
20 motion to move this forward?
21 JOHN WRIGHT:  So moved.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. John
23 Wright.  Do we have a second?
24 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
26 Glenn Davis.  Now discussion.  Any questions or
27 comments for the administrator?  Seeing and hearing
28 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
29 Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
30 unanimously.
31 Moving on to item number 10, authorization for
32 Anderson County to serve as sponsor for an Economic
33 Development Agency grant to be submitted by the
34 Anderson Area YMCA.  Mr. Burns.
35 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
36 we’ve been approached by the YMCA.  I think they’ve
37 talked to every member of council.  At least the
38 majority of members of council.  They are looking for
39 us to support their endeavor.  They’ve received a lot
40 of money from the school district and from the YMCA,
41 but they do quality for a certain type of grant that we
42 do not qualify for, so it’s not taking anything away
43 from us.  But it would certainly help them with that
44 project that they want to do for that cross country
45 thing, which we think would be a great tourism
46 attraction for Anderson County.  There’s no match
47 required of us, so we’re just asking permission to
48 assist the YMCA to go after these monies, because they
49 cannot.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
11

1 motion to move this forward?
2 GLENN DAVIS:  So moved.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
4 Glenn Davis.  Do we have a second?
5 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
7 Brett Sanders.  Now discussion.  For the record, this
8 ain’t costing us nothing.  We ain’t got to do nothing. 
9 Just helping them out because they can’t do it
10 themselves.  Any more discussion?  All in favor of the
11 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
12 motion carries unanimously.
13 We’re going to move on now to item number 11(a). 
14 This will be road acceptance into the county inventory. 
15 This will be in District 6.  This is Yorkshire Farms
16 Subdivision.  We’ve got Seven Lane, Terpack Trail,
17 Starling Avenue and Plumblee Lane.  Do we have a motion
18 to move this forward?
19 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
21 Davis, Jimmy Davis.  Do we have a second?
22 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
24 Brett Sanders.  Now discussion?  Mr. Burns, all this
25 meets our criteria and everything?
26 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir, it
27 does.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Any more
29 discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of hands. 
30 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
31 unanimously.
32 Moving on to item number 12, requests by council
33 members.  Does anyone have any requests that I’m
34 unaware of?  Anyone at all?  
35 Seeing and hearing none, we’re going to move on now
36 to the Administrator’s report.
37 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this
38 time, Mr. Chairman.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to
40 move on now to item number 14.  This will be standing
41 committees.  It’s by ordinance, the chairman has to
42 appoint these by second meeting of the month.  We had
43 to make a few changed this year.  We’ve got some people
44 involved, but I think it’s work out.  
45 For the record, the Finance Committee will be
46 Chairman Brett Sanders and Cindy Wilson and John
47 Wright, Jr.  
48 Administrator Policy Rules Committee will be Jimmy
49 Davis Chairman, Tommy Dunn, Ray Graham.
50 Public Safety Committee, Chairman Ray Graham, Glenn



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
12

1 Davis and John Wright, Jr.
2 Recycling and Solid Waste Committee, Glenn Davis
3 Chairman, John Wright, Jr. and Ray Graham.
4 Planning and Public Works, Cindy Wilson Chairman,
5 Jimmy Davis and Brett Sanders.
6 Just to shore things up, I’d like to put that in
7 the form of a motion.  Do I get a second?
8 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
10 Graham.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion
11 show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion
12 carries unanimously.  And we’ll be having some ad hoc
13 committees later on.  If anybody needs anything, let me
14 know.
15 We’re going to be moving on now to citizens
16 comments.  Again, this will be three minutes.  When I
17 call your name, introduce yourself for the record and
18 what district you’re in.  This is on any topic.  It’s
19 my understanding we have none.  No citizen signed up. 
20 So we’ll be moving on.  Remarks from council
21 members.  Mr. Jimmy Davis.
22 JIMMY DAVIS:  Nothing at this
23 time, sir.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Mr.
25 Brett Sanders.
26 BRETT SANDERS:  Nothing at this
27 time, sir.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Mr.
29 Glenn Davis.
30 GLENN DAVIS:  Nothing at this
31 time, sir.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
33 Davis.  Mr. Ray Graham.
34 RAY GRAHAM:  Nothing at this
35 time.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
37 Graham.  Mr. John Wright, Jr.
38 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
39 Chairman.  I just want to commend the county and Mr.
40 Burns’ staff for -- the communication, I think the last
41 several days has been really good.  I’ve had a couple
42 of people remark to me on just some of the social media
43 stuff and the things as far as the winter storm that
44 came through here and people keeping up with what was
45 going on through Anderson County.  So appreciate the
46 staff doing a good job of getting that information out
47 there.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  I
49 also want to commend Mr. Burns and his staff for the
50 job they’ve done for the citizens of Anderson County



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
13

1 throughout this storm.  Duke Power used this -- luckily
2 there wasn’t a whole lot of power outages.  There was
3 some.  Duke Power used this as a staging area.  They
4 were well pleased with it.  Fact of the business, they
5 did wanted to get back in touch with Mr. Burns and
6 start paying for these uses.  I told them today, I’m
7 just one person, but I didn’t think they needed to pay. 
8 That’s a service we give to our services.  In turn they
9 do a great job being here.  That’s how that comes out. 
10 Also, Mr. Burns eluded on the homeless shelter on
11 Tower Street that come up and was served.  And it’s
12 nice to know we’ve got somewhere for people to go and
13 have compassion. 
14 I want to thank our Emergency Preparedness
15 Department under Mr. Hawkins for all the fine job that
16 they’ve done.  Had nothing but good reports on them. 
17 And I meant to say this earlier, but let’s keep him and
18 his family in our thoughts and prayers.  He lost his
19 grandmother a few days ago.
20 Mr. Burns, anything you’d like to say on behalf of
21 your staff or anything or the citizens?
22 RUSTY BURNS:  I’m just proud
23 to be one of the people who works for Anderson County. 
24 But our people were awesome.  We responded to every
25 request we had.  We were on top of it.  We handled it. 
26 And our volunteer partners at the Hope Missions and
27 everything else, we were able to take care of everybody
28 I think that we could in every part of the county.  And
29 I’m telling you what, it was just like a well oiled
30 machine.  And again, Mr. Hawkins deserves a lot of
31 credit for his first baptism under fire.  And the very
32 fact that y’all have already mentioned his grandmother
33 who he was extraordinarily close to, passed away two
34 days (verbatim) and he didn’t miss a beat.  But he’s
35 going to take Thursday off.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   And Mr. Burns,
37 will you touch on the EMS at this time.  I think we
38 doubled up and done ---
39 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir, we
40 doubled up.  We handled every call.  We had no
41 complaints that I’ve been made aware of.  Everything
42 worked real well.  We staged very well.  And council’s
43 wisdom, Chairman of Public Safety’s wisdom, we had
44 four-wheel drive vehicles so we were able to go where
45 we needed to go and have received no complaints, but
46 just have received a lot of nice comments from people
47 who were touched by county employees.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   I just want to
49 just for the record -- I know we all got this -- but we
50 get a lot of -- I know Mr. Graham has gotten inundated



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
14

1 by some -- when we made this change about some things. 
2 But just for the record, I want to read this.  We all
3 got a copy of it.  I want to put this in.  I just think
4 it’s good.
5 This comes from the Director of TTI.  
6 TTI has requested EMS several times in the past few
7 weeks for different kinds of incidents.  Paramedic
8 David Wires did an outstanding job with a chest pain
9 call that turned out to be a panic attack and calming
10 the patient down.  He showed a caring approach that
11 went a long way with the mother of the patient that was
12 also on scene and an employee.  Paramedic David Payton
13 did an awesome job while responding to a forklift
14 accident involving a broken leg.  Also, the EMS
15 transport unit 408 did a great job packaging and
16 transporting the patient at this same call.  Today we
17 had another chest pain call that needed for a medic
18 response.  Medic 19 responded from slab town and was
19 here at our innovation center promptly and with a
20 willingness to serve his community.  He was happy to be
21 here and served with a heart.  His willingness to care
22 for the patient was seen not only by me but our entire
23 team.  Jason M. and crew were the transport crew from
24 MedShore and were also great in calming and taking care
25 of their patient.  With all the talk of negativity
26 around about the new EMS system, I would like to
27 personally say thank you to all who have responded to
28 TTI.  Your team has outstanding members and is working
29 as a team.  Thank you for all the help and the
30 willingness to partner with TTI.  Again, Great Job and
31 keep up the good work.  
32 I just wanted to read that into the record because
33 like they said, get a lot of things like that.  What
34 they done, as I’ve said before and Mr. Graham has said
35 many times, it’s not perfect.  We’re going to have
36 bumps in the road, but it’s well on the way, I think,
37 of doing a good job for our citizens of Anderson County
38 and being the best thing for it.
39 I appreciate everybody’s hard work.  Look forward
40 to working through a year.  We’ve got some things
41 coming up.  Look forward to the new year.  Any way I
42 can be of service or help anyone, please let me know. 
43 Again, thank y’all.  Please be safe out there.  We’ve
44 still got some inclement weather.  
45 One last thing, when is the -- I want to make an
46 announcement.  Remind me about the broadband. 
47 RUSTY BURNS:  That will be
48 11:00 here Friday.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   This Friday?
50 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - January 18, 2022
15

1 TOMMY DUNN:   11:00. 
2 Broadband.  Everybody is aware of that.
3 Thank y’all again.  Meeting be adjourned.
4
5 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:53 P.M.)



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL CALLED COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 24, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
GLENN DAVIS
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS - Via Zoom
JOHN WRIGHT - Via Zoom
JIMMY DAVIS - Via Zoom
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
RENEE WATTS

      



Anderson County  Council - Special Called County  Council Meeting - January 24, 2022
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   ... I’ll ask
2 the Honorable Glenn Davis if he’ll lead us.  All rise,
3 please.
4 GLENN DAVIS:  Let us pray.
5 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY GLENN DAVIS
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all. 
7 We’ll get started.  What we have is approval of the
8 opioid settlement agreement with Defendants Johnson &
9 Johnson, Janssen (and affiliates), manufacturer.  I
10 think you all got a copy of what the settlement was. 
11 This is recommended by our county attorney who is on
12 vacation this week, but Mr. Harmon does recommend this. 
13 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
14 RAY GRAHAM:  So moved.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr.
16 Graham.  Do we have a second?
17 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr.
19 Glenn Davis.  Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none,
20 all in favor of the motion show of hands.  How do you
21 vote, Mr. -- Jimmy Davis approves, Brett Sanders
22 approves, John Wright, how does he vote?
23 JOHN WRIGHT:  I vote in
24 favor of it.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   So it’s
26 unanimous with John Wright, Jr., Jimmy Davis and Brett
27 Sanders, Mr. Glenn Davis and Mr. Graham and myself all
28 in favor of.  
29 Do we have any citizens comments?
30 RUSTY BURNS:  No one signed
31 up.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   And I
33 appreciate everybody -- it didn’t take but a minute,
34 but to come here to get this done, take care of the
35 citizens of Anderson County.  Thank y’all very much.
36 Y’all have a good, safe trip home.  Meeting
37 adjourned.
38
39 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 1:09 P.M.)



 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District 5 
 
Brett Sanders 
V. Chairman, District 4 

John B. Wright, Jr 
Council District 1 
 
Glenn Davis 
Council District 2 

  Ray Graham 
  Council District 3  
 
  Jimmy Davis 
  Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 

 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns | County Administrator 
rburns@andersoncountysc.org 

  

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY LITTER ADHOC COMMITTEE 

Thursday, February 10, 2022, 1:00 p.m. 
101 South Main Street, Anderson SC 

Second Floor, Administrator’s Conference Room 
Chairman John B. Wright, Jr., Presiding 

 
 

1. Call to Order                                                                               Chairman John B. Wright, Jr. 

2. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance                                         Honorable Glenn Davis 

3. Introductions                                                                             Mr. Greg Smith 

4. Discussion of Causes of Litter                                              Mr. Greg Smith 

5. Adopt-A Spots                                                                           Mrs. Samantha Porter 

6. Palmetto Pride                                                                          Mrs. Samantha Porter 

7. SCDOT                                                                                           Mr. Greg Smith 

8. Litter Crews                                                                                Mr. David Baker 

9. Environmental Enforcement                                                Mr. Greg Smith 

10. Discussion of Litter Cleanup Ideas                                      Chairman John B. Wright, Jr. 

11. Citizens Comments 

12. Adjourn                

 

 
 
 



 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 

AGENDA  
Planning and Public Works Committee Meeting  

Friday, February 11, 2022 at 1pm 
Historic Courthouse 

101 S. Main Street Anderson, South Carolina 
              Second Floor, Administrator’s Conference Room 
                                             Chairwoman Cindy Wilson, Presiding 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Call to Order                                                                                   Chairwoman Cindy Wilson 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge                                                             Chairwoman Cindy Wilson  
  
3.  Permitting and approval of developments that have                      Ms. Alesia Hunter            
    Amenities packages                                                                           
 
4.  Review and discussion of Planning Commission                           Ms. Alesia Hunter 
     attendance                         
                                                                                                                 
5.  Ordinance -2022-004 discussion                                                    ALL  
 
6.  Ordinance -2022-006 discussion                                                    ALL 
  
7. Review of Stormwater Retention Measures as related                    Mr. Jon Batson                                                                                                                                                     
    to more than 1-acre earth disturbance      
 
8.   New Business             Chairwoman Cindy Wilson 
 
9.   Citizen Comments   
                                                                                                                                                               
10.  Adjournment   
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-003 
  
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
(UNITED COMMUNITY BANK – PROJECT SPRUCE - ADDITIONAL 
PROPERTY); AND OTHER MATTER RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the “2010 
Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the 2010 Agreement, the boundaries of the park created 
therein (the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County 
and Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County to United 
Community Bank for Project Spruce, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include 
certain parcels in Greenville County constituting a portion of the Project Spruce project site not previously 
included in the Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that the 2010 Agreement is 
hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Greenville County as further 
described on Exhibit A attached to this Ordinance (the “Additional Property), and, pursuant to Section 3(B) 
of the 2010 Agreement, upon adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the 2010 
Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such Additional Property in the 2010 Agreement, 
without further action by either County. 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of ________, 2022.  
 
 
 ATTEST:         FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 
Rusty Burns       Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon  
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: January 18, 2022 

2nd Reading: February 1, 2022 

3rd Reading: February 15, 2022 

Public Hearing: February 1, 2022 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Addition to Exhibit A to 

Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 

between Anderson County and Greenville County 
 
 
 
Address: 509 Falls Street, Greenville, South Carolina  
 
TMS #’s: 0069000200300, 0061000500500, and 0061000500501. 
  
 
Legal Description: see attached survey 
 
 



 
 



 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of January 18, 2022, February 1, 2022_ and 
February 15, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, 
and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: _________, 2022 
 

4835-7569-7641 v.4 



HSB 7046718 v.2  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-005 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
TO INCLUDE CERTAIN PROPERTY OF LOLLIS METALS, INC.; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted by Anderson County Council 
on November 16, 2010 and Ordinance No. 4391 enacted November 2, 2010 by Greenville County 
Council, Anderson and Greenville Counties entered into an Agreement for the Development of a 
Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park 
created therein (the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of 
Anderson County and Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County to 
Lollis Metals, Inc., it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain 
parcels in Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that: 
 
 1. Exhibit A to the Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include 
the property located in Anderson County described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, 
pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon adoption by Greenville County Council of a 
corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such property and 
Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

 
2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 

 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

 
 
 



HSB 7046718 v.2  

 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
_____________________________ 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

 

1st Reading: February 1, 2022 

2nd Reading: February 15, 2022 

3rd Reading: __________________ 

Public Hearing: February 15, 2022 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 



 A-1 
HSB 7046718 v.2  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
Anderson County TMS Numbers: 

1) TMS No. 1520001005 

2) TMS No. 1520001003 

3) TMS No. 1520001014 

 



HSB 7046718 v.2  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of February 1, 2022, February 15, 2022 and 
_________, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ________, 2022 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-006 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 38-172 AND 38-174 OF THE ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, CODE OF ORDINANCES SO AS TO REQUIRE 
PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVAL FOR CERTAIN DWELLING UNITS; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, dwelling units presently defined in Section 38-37 of the Anderson County, 
South Carolina, Code of Ordinances (hereinafter “Anderson County Code” or “Code”) as attached, 
multifamily, or townhouse are presented to the Planning Commission for approval or rejection if 
they qualify as a large scale project: 
 
 WHEREAS, projects in the aforementioned classifications may have significant impacts 
upon the general health and welfare of a community; 
 
 WHEREAS, the County Council desires that certain projects containing multiple dwelling 
units should be evaluated by the Planning Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County Council desires that the approval process for certain projects 
containing multiple dwellings units should mirror the approval process for subdivisions as 
contained in Article III of Chapter 38 of the Code. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. Section 38-172 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina is 
hereby amended to add item (11) to read as follows: 
 
 (11) Attached, multifamily, or townhome developments consisting of 14 or 

more dwelling units or more dwelling units. 
 
 2. Section 38-174 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

(b) The Commission shall review and evaluate each application with respect 
only to compliance with all applicable development standards contained 
herein and elsewhere in this article, except that any application for a project 
contained within section 38-172 (11) shall be evaluated by the commission 
in accordance with section 38-311. 

 
3. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 

 4. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 



 
 5. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 6. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2022. 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
_____________________________ 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

 

1st Reading: February 1, 2022 

2nd Reading: February 15, 2022 

3rd Reading: __________________ 

Public Hearing: _______________ 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-059 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE II AND ARTICLE III OF CHAPTER 30 OF 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA RELATED 
TO EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AND FRANCHISE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
NON-EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 
County Council is authorized under Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, as amended, 
to provide for the general health, safety, and welfare of Anderson County and to exercise its police 
power; 
 
 WHEREAS, the County Council desires to provide and/or make provisions for efficient 
and quality emergency medical services (“EMS”) and non-emergency medical services within the 
County;   
 
  WHEREAS, The County Council has approved and the County is presenting operating 
the EMS system with County owned and operated quick response vehicles (“QRVs”) and a single 
contracted provider of EMS services; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the County Council desires to amend the provisions of Chapter 30 of the 
Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina related to emergency medical services and 
franchise requirements for non-emergency medical services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. Article II of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South 
Carolina, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

ARTICLE II.  Emergency Medical Services System. 
 

DIVISION I. General 
 
Sec. 30-56. General Application 
This article applies to the establishment, operation, and maintenance of 
the Anderson County Emergency Medical Services System. 
 
Sec. 30-57. Purpose and Intent. 
 It is the purpose and intent of this Article to establish the Anderson 
County Emergency Medical Services System.  The system may include 
components which are operated by the County with or without partnership 
entities and components which are contracted through the County’s 
Procurement Code to provide ALS and BLS services to the citizens of 



2 
 

Anderson County and to visitors to Anderson County, all as approved 
from time to time by the County Council. 
 
Sec. 30-58. Definitions. 
The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this Article, shall 
have the meaning ascribed to them in this section, except where the 
context clearly indicated a different meaning: 
 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) are those services requested through 
the    County’s 911 system. 
 
Advanced Life Support (ALS) are those emergency medical services 
provided by a paramedic licensed through the South Carolina Department 
of Health and Environmental Control (DHEC) or its successor agency. 
 
Basic Life Support (BLS) are those emergency medical services provided 
by an emergency medical technician (EMT) licensed through DHEC or 
its successor agency. 
 
Sec. 30-59. Levy of ad valorem Taxes. 
There shall be annually levied by the county auditor and collected by the 
county treasurer an ad valorem tax of such amount as the County Council 
may from year to year determine upon all taxable property in the County 
to support the EMS system. 
 
Sec. 30-60. Powers of the County Administrator. 
The County Administrator or his designated agent shall be empowered to 
enforce, organize, develop, and render emergency medical services to all 
areas of the County. 
 
DIVISION II. Emergency Medical Services Plan 
 
Sec. 30-70. Emergency Medical Services Plan. 
The Anderson County emergency medical services plan, available from 
the County and incorporated herein as if fully set forth verbatim, shall 
primarily include the action plan for the Quick Response Vehicles 
(QRVs) staffed by paramedics to provide ALS services and the contract 
with the contract provider to provide both ALS and BLS services through 
the County’s 911 system.  The plan may also include an executive 
summary, funding of the emergency medical services to be provided by 
the County, rules and regulations that may be developed, and transport 
fees be charged that may be adopted from time to time by action of County 
Council. 
 
 
 



3 
 

DIVISION III. Scope of EMS System; Penalties 
 
Sec. 30-80. Countywide 911 Emergency Medical Services. 
The County’s EMS system shall provide county-wide 911 services 
designed to respond to medical emergencies and to provide initial medical 
response and/or treatment as a means of stabilizing accident and/or trauma 
victims for transportation to medical facilities for primary, secondary, 
and/or tertiary care or treatment as may be required.  The only providers 
authorized to provide 911 emergency medical services within Anderson 
County are County employed paramedics and the contract provider(s) to 
the County. 
 
Sec. 30-81. Providers of Non-Emergency Medical Services. 
Providers of non-emergency medical services who wish to operate within 
Anderson County must obtain permission to operate within the County by 
obtaining a franchise to provide such services in accordance with Article 
III of Chapter 30.  Providers of non-emergency medical services are not 
authorized to provide 911 emergency services and shall not appear at the 
scene of a 911 issued call for emergency services. 
 
Section 30-82. Penalty for Violation. 
This article is a duly enacted law of the County and is subject to 
enforcement, as any other law at the County by County law enforcement 
with penalties as provided by section 1-7 of the Code of Ordinances, 
Anderson County, South Carolina. 
 

 2. ARTICLE III of Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson 
County, South Carolina, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
  
 Article III.  Non-Emergency Medical Services.  Franchising of Private Ambulance or 

Medical Transportation Services. 
 

Sec. 30-84. - Grant of Franchise.  
A private ambulance service must obtain a franchise, subject to the within 
guidelines for operating within Anderson County for the purpose of 
providing non-emergency transportation to the citizens of the County and 
its visitors to the County.  
Sec. 30-85. - Term of Franchise.  
A franchise shall be for a period of one year, with the same to commence 
at 12:01 a.m. on the date in which the franchise agreement is finalized.  
Sec. 30-86.-Fees  
A franchise application fee of $500.00 shall be required for each term a 
franchise is issued and application shall be made on a form provided by 
the County. A private ambulance service or medical transportation service 
operating as a business at the inception of the ordinance must obtain a 
franchise within three (3) months of the effective date of this division.  



4 
 

 
Sec. 30-87.- Operation Within the County Without Obtaining a Franchise 
Agreement. 
Any private ambulance service or medical transportation service that fails 
to complete the franchise process or fails to receive approval of the 
Anderson County Public Safety Committee to operate within the 
jurisdictional boundary of Anderson County shall be subject to the 
following system of fines. 
(a) First occurrence: Written warning from the Anderson County 
  EMS department and an application packet for the franchise 
  request. 
(b) Second Occurrence: $2,500.00 fine 
(c) Third Occurrence: $5,000.00 fine. 
(d) Fourth Occurrence: $10,000 fine. 
(e) All subsequent occurrences: $15,000.00 fine. 
 
Sec. 30-88. - No competition with county emergency medical service.  
The franchisee is expressly prohibited by this division from competing 
through the 911 system with county EMS, except where such emergency 
services arise in the course of nonemergency medical transportation. The 
county council reserves the exclusive right to provide basic and advanced 
life support emergency medical services through its system, including 
county EMS and organizations under contract to provide emergency 
services to all areas of the county. Private ambulance services which 
receive a request for emergency medical service through their business 
telephone numbers are to refer to said call to the Anderson County 911 
system.  Franchisees shall enter into mutual aid agreements to provide 
patient care if requested by a contracted provider of emergency services 
in the County at the level for which the franchisee’s service is licensed by 
the South Carolina Division of EMS.   
 
Sec. 30-89. - Nonprofit Organizations.  
Community based, nonprofit organizations, utilizing volunteer, nonpaid 
personnel, who rely upon public and private donations to provide 
convalescent transportation, are exempt from the provisions of this 
division, and are encouraged to continue this service.  
Sec. 30-90. - Indemnification of County.  
The franchisee shall pay, and by its acceptance of a franchise agreement 
specifically agrees that it will pay, any judgment obtained against the 
county and all expenses incurred by the county in defending itself with 
regard to all damages claimed as a result of this franchise. These expenses 
shall include all out-of-pocket expenses, including costs and attorney fees, 
and shall also include the reasonable value of any services rendered by the 



5 
 

county attorney or his assistant and any employees of the county. These 
expenses shall also include any cost incurred by the county in obtaining 
expert witnesses for any administrative or court hearing to enforce this 
division or franchise agreement. The franchisee shall maintain, liability 
insurance insuring the franchisee and naming the County as an additional 
insured with regard to all damages mentioned above in the following 
minimum amounts:  
(1)  $1,000,000.00 for bodily injury or death to any one person.  
(2)  $1,000,000.00 for property damage resulting from any one accident.  
(3)  $1,000,000.00 for all other types of liability, including malpractice.  
 
Sec. 30-91. - Right of County to Amend this Franchise Ordinance.  
The County may amend this division from time to time as may be deemed 
necessary or advisable in the public interest. This provision shall not be 
construed to effect the right of the county to revoke or terminate a 
franchise as herein elsewhere provided.  
Sec. 30-92. - EEO Statement.  
The franchisee shall sign and file with the county administrator an equal 
employment opportunity statement and shall so advertise as an equal 
employment employer.  
Sec. 30-93. – Assignment, Change of Control, Effect of Bankruptcy or 
Insolvency.  
(a) The franchisee shall not transfer its franchise without the 
approval of the county council by ordinance.  
(b) Prior approval of the county council shall be required where 
ownership or control of more than 30 percent of the right of control of 
franchisee is acquired by a person or group of persons acting in concert, 
none of whom already own or control 30 percent or more of such right of 
control, singularly or collectively. By its acceptance of this franchise, the 
franchise shall specifically grant and agree that any such acquisition 
occurring without prior approval of the county council shall constitute a 
violation of the franchise by the franchisee.  
(c) In the event the franchisee shall be adjudicated bankrupt or 
placed in receivership or shall make an assignment for the benefit of its 
creditors, or in the event any foreclosure of any mortgage or deed of trust 
upon its properties shall be commenced, the county council may declare 
the franchise grant immediately terminated and in that event all of the 
rights, privileges, and authority of the franchise shall immediately cease 
and terminate. In no event shall a franchise grant be considered an asset 
of the bankrupt estate or receivership. A franchise shall have no authority 
to mortgage, assign, pledge, or deposit this franchise agreement or any 
rights thereunder as security for any loan or any other thing, without the 



6 
 

express formal approval in advance of the county council after a public 
hearing thereon.  
 
Sec. 30-94. - Records and Reports.  
The franchisee shall file a monthly report with the County Administrator 
to include call volume, running time, breakdown of destination, roster of 
employees with level of certification.  
 
Sec. 30-95. - Office in the County Required.  
The franchisee shall maintain an office in the county. This office shall be 
the official office of the franchisee to which all notices, correspondence, 
complaints, and other communications from the county shall be sent. The 
franchisee shall provide a non-long distance telephone number for the 
area for which they apply to conduct business.  
Sec. 30-96. - Complaints.  
All complaints from the public shall be kept on file with the County 
Administrator or designee. The County Administrator shall forward to the 
franchisee a copy of all complaints about the franchisee received by the 
County Administrator’s office. All complaints received by the County 
Administrator shall be keep on file for the life of the franchise agreement. 
Such complaints shall constitute a public record and be open for 
inspection and copying by members of the public, in compliance with 
state statutes; provided, however, that such records do not compromise 
the medical confidentiality of the patient's medical condition. The 
franchisee shall have 30 days to respond to stated violations and produce 
evidence of corrective action.  
Sec. 30-97. - Procedures for a termination of a franchise.  
A franchise shall only be terminated upon approval of county council. The 
franchisee shall have the following rights:  
(1)  Right to 60 days' written notice setting forth the reasons for 
termination.  
(2)  Right to examine and make copies at franchisee's expense of all 
evidence which the county has, whether favorable or adverse to the 
franchisee.  
(3)  Right to be represented by counsel.  
(4)  Right to cross-examine witnesses.  
(5)  Right to present witnesses.  
(6)  Right to present evidence in its own behalf.  
(7)  Right to a written decision setting forth council's action.  



7 
 

Council may, if it finds by a preponderance of the evidence that any of the 
provisions of this division or state, local or federal law which have been 
violated, or that the franchisee has failed to provide adequate 
nonemergency medical transportation to the public, place on probation for 
a stated period of time, issue a reprimand, warn, or dissolve the franchise. 
Any combination of these sanctions may be imposed by county council.  
 
Sec. 30-98. - Separability.  
If any section, subsection, or clause of this division shall be held to be 
unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, the validity of the remaining 
sections, subsections or clauses shall not be affected thereby.  
Sec 30-99. - Regulations.  
Regulations for the operation of a private ambulance service within the 
county may be developed by the County Administrator and shall become 
effective upon approval of County Council.  
Sec. 30-100. - Right reserved.  
The County Council has the right to deny any and all requests for 
franchising an ambulance service in Anderson County.  

 
2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 

 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 
 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2020. 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 



8 
 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading:__________________ 

2nd Reading:__________________ 

3rd Reading:___________________ 

Public Hearing:________________ 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
























































	Agenda February 15, 2022
	Resolution R2022-008 Estella Williams
	Resolution R2022-009 Gerald Black
	CCM minutes 1/04/2022
	CCM minutes 1/18/2022
	CCM minutes 1/24/2022
	Litter ADHOC Committee Agenda
	Planning & Public Works Committee Agenda
	7a Ordinance 2022-003 Project Spruce
	8a Ordinance 2022-005
	8b Ordinance 2022-006
	8c Ordinance 2021-059
	9 Appointments
	10a Shalom House Ministries Appopriations Request
	11a Budget Transfers
	11b Paving
	11c Special Projects



